#### TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES - APRIL 17, 2000

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Township of Lower Makefield was held in the Municipal Building on April 17, 2000. Chairman Hackman called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. noting that the Board had been meeting in Executive Session since 6:30 p.m. discussing legal and personnel matters. They were unable to complete this discussion and will need to adjourn to Executive Session following the regular meeting to complete unfinished business.

Those present:

Board of Supervisors:

Wesley Hackman, Chairman

Frank Fazzalore, Vice Chairman

Scott Fegley, Secretary Fred Allan, Member Grace Godshalk, Member

Others:

Terry Fedorchak, Township Manager Jeffrey Garton, Township Solicitor Jan Gouza, Township Engineer

Joseph Bainbridge, Acting Chief of Police

#### PUBLIC COMMENT

Ms. Herman expressed concern with unsafe traffic conditions on Lindenhurst/Stoopville Roads. She stated residents have written to Congressman Greenwood to ask for help from the Federal government. She read into the record the letter they have sent (copy attached). The Board noted they also received a copy of this letter. Ms. Herman stated they appreciate the Board's continued support. She asked if Acting Chief Bainbridge was able to clarify the support the State Police will offer. Acting Chief Bainbridge stated they are aware of the Township's request for help and would like to put together a plan.

Ms. Karen Freedman asked if a letter was written to PennDOT about forwarding the Swamp Road bridge information to Mr. Yeager. Mr. Garton stated he was advised that Mr. Yeager could look at it but would not be able to get a copy. Ms. Freedman noted the Lower Makefield Township Police Report in the Yardley News and noted the Police Department was actively pursuing making the roads safe in the Township. She thanked the Police Department for this work. Ms. Freedman stated she has looked at the Traffic Impact Study for Newtown Office Commons and is concerned with limitations regarding road improvements. She feels they should make sure the intersection is properly installed before further development goes in on the corner. Mr. Hackman stated he has been meeting with Mr. Goodnoe to see if there is a way they can improve this situation. Mrs. Godshalk stated with regard to the intersection at the Brandywine Development they suggested two years ago a jughandle be installed and she does not feel space has been set aside to accommodate this. Mr. Hackman agreed this is correct and there is nothing in the plan for this although there is the possibility for a right on, right off from the By-Pass for this development.

Ms. Herman asked when the public will be brought up to date on the discussions that are taking place between Lower Makefield Township, Lynn Bush, and Newtown Township; and Mr. Hackman stated he feels this will take place shortly. He added as more projects are approved in this area, the alternatives become less and less. Mr. Fegley stated he feels

Mr. Garton asked if they will lot out the woodlands and the creek or offer it for dedication, and Mr. Murphy stated behind this are the rear yards of a thirty to forty year old subdivision. They have shown on this plan that the land would be lotted out, but they would be willing to discuss this with the Township. Mr. Fegley stated since there is no adjacent Township open space, he would not be interested in having this dedicated to the Township.

Mr. Murphy noted Houston Road is approximately 400 feet from the new road, and the Planning Commission was not opposed to this. They will require a waiver for this. Mr. Hackman asked about the possibility of building a bridge across Houston Road. Mr. Murphy asked why they would do this unless they wanted to make significant improvements to Houston Road. Mr. Fegley was not in favor of this. Mrs. Godshalk stated they could make this a walking bridge. Mr. Hackman agreed that the residents on the opposite side of Houston Road would probably not want to see a road. Mr. Fegley stated he would not be opposed to a bikepath connection. The developer was asked to look into this.

Mr. Allan questioned why this property was already being listed on the MLS if they have not yet received approval. Mr. DeLuca stated this property is not on the MLS, and stated he would be willing to discuss this further with Mr. Allan following the meeting.

## REVIEW OF INFORMAL SKETCH PLAN FOR LOWER MAKEFIELD CORPORATE CENTER SOUTH CAMPUS

Mr. Edward Murphy, attorney, was present with Mr. Vince DeLuca and Mr. Tom Doyle. Mr. Murphy showed the Sketch Plan as it relates to Floral Vale. Mr. DeLuca stated one of the buildings will be a one-story building and the others will be three-story buildings. They already have a tenant interested in one of the new buildings.

Mr. Murphy stated the only concern they discussed with the Planning Commission was not installing the planted islands between the parking stalls. This would require a waiver. Mr. Hackman stated these serve to break up the parking. Mr. Murphy noted on the plan where they propose to have landscaped buffers. Mr. DeLuca stated if they are required to have the planted islands, this pushes the parking further away from the buildings. According to the Ordinance ten foot islands are required.

Mr. Murphy stated the Planning Commission asked that they look into coordinating access with Goodwin & Lacey, and they are looking into this.

It was noted there are three entrances for Floral Vale, two on Township Line Road and one on Yardley-Newtown Road. Mrs. Godshalk noted it may be a good idea to have a connection between the two developments. Mr. DeLuca noted they do not control the open space in Floral Vale. A potential access point was noted, and Mr. DeLuca agreed to look into this. Mr. Fazzalore stated this would keep people from having to go out to the main roads if they need to travel to the adjacent development.

#### REVIEW OF INFORMAL SKETCH PLAN FOR ST. IGNATIUS CHURCH

Mr. Edward Murphy, attorney, was present with Monsignor Schumaker. Mr. Murphy showed the plan which shows the existing St. Ignatius church property which is slightly less than eighteen acres and includes the Church, Rectory, the School, and parking. Mr. Murphy stated the Monsignor was able to acquire three additional tax parcels which will bring the total amount of acreage from less than eighteen acres to thirty-four and a half acres. The plan shows the addition of a new Rectory and Pastoral Center with some parking added to the rear of the existing parking lot, an access road which goes out to Sandy Run Road, four or possibly five modular classroom units for the School, and additional parking to the east of the existing Rectory which will be converted to meeting space.

Mr. Hackman noted the length of the new proposed road. Mr. Murphy stated they hope to minimize the intrusion into the woods and maximize the sight distance on Sandy Run Road. The Monsignor noted the classrooms will be added over a period of ten years.

Mr. Fegley asked about impervious surface and Mr. Murphy stated they are within the required limits.

Mr. Fazzalore noted the additional road will help facilitate people exiting the property.

Mr. Allan stated he feels they have done a commendable job of saving the trees.

#### APPROVE GRANTING EXTENSION OF TIME TO EDGEWOOD POINTE

Mr. Allan moved and Mr. Fazzalore seconded granting an extension of time to Edgewood Pointe Preliminary Plan to 8/4/00.

Mrs. Godshalk stated she felt this was turned down by the Court. Mr. Garton stated this is a new Plan and has not yet gone before the Planning Commission. Mrs. Godshalk stated it is possible the Board may not meet the first meeting in August, and Mr. Murphy stated if needed, they would agree to extend the date further. Mr. Hackman stated the prior plan was denied, and Mr. Garton stated this is an entirely new application.

Motion to approve carried unanimously.

## APPROVE GRANTING EXTENSION OF TIME TO FIELDSTONE @ LOWER MAKEFIELD

Mr. Allan moved and Mr. Fegley seconded to grant an extension of time to Fieldstone @ Lower Makefield to 8/31/00.

Mr. Garton stated he feels the Board's prior concerns are understood.

Motion to approve carried unanimously.

#### APPROVE GRANTING EXTENSION OF TIME TO GARY AND JEANETTE MINNES

Mr. Allan moved, Mr. Fegley seconded and it was unanimously carried to grant an extension of time to Gary and Jeanette Minnes Preliminary/Final Plan to 8/10/00.

## APPROVE GRANTING EXTENSION OF TIME TO FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH OF NEWTOWN

Mr. Allan moved and Mr. Fegley seconded to grant an extension of time to First Baptist Church of Newtown Preliminary Plan to 8/7/00.

Mr. Fazzalore stated he understands they are going to the Zoning Hearing Board. Mr. Garton stated the Special Exception was granted in 1982 and they also need impervious surface relief. Mr. Fazzalore stated when they sold ground to the Water Company they were to be in compliance as part of that Agreement. Mr. Garton stated Ms. Frick could review the file with regard to this matter.

Motion to approve carried unanimously.

#### APPROVAL OF CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS

Mrs. Godshalk moved and Mr. Fazzalore seconded to approve Certificate of Appropriateness to First Union Bank, 706 Stony Hill Road, for a roof-mounted satellite dish. Mrs. Godshalk noted this is to run the computer in the Bank and has been approved by HARB. Motion carried unanimously.

Mrs. Godshalk moved and Mr. Fazzalore seconded to approve Certificate of Appropriateness to Portobello's Ristorante Italiano for its sign. Mrs. Godshalk noted this has been approved by HARB, and a sketch was provided in the Board's packet. Motion carried unanimously.

## SIGNING OF LINENS - JOSEPH CASADONTI MINOR SUBDIVISION AND SCHWAB

Linens were signed following the meeting.

## APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 1056 - CERTIFIED CORPORATE RESOLUTION FOR DEPOSITORY AUTHORIZATION

Mr. Fegley moved and Mrs. Godshalk seconded to approve Resolution No. 1056. Mr. Fegley stated this will allow Mr. Allan to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

## APPROVAL OF APRIL 3, AND APRIL 17, 2000 WARRANTS LISTS AND MARCH, 2000 PAYROLL

Mr. Fegley moved, Mr. Fazzalore seconded and it was unanimously carried to approve April 3, and April 17, 2000 Warrants Lists and March, 2000 payroll as attached to the Minutes.

#### STATUS OF ROCK RUN DAM GRANT

Mr. Fedorchak stated he has been in contact with the engineer working for the DEP who has indicated they are working on the paperwork and have begun the final written report. He indicated on the phone that their written report will reflect that the project is justified. Mr. Fedorchak stated he conveyed on the phone to the DEP representative how anxious he was that the written report be completed and was advised that the next round of funding is not until October. Mr. Fedorchak stated he will contact them again next week to see if they can move the project along and get the report into Mr. Steil and Mr. Conti's hands as soon as possible so they can bring it to the State for the next round of funding.

#### DISCUSSION OF POLICE DEPARTMENT RENOVATIONS

Mr. Fedorchak stated he feels they budgeted \$30,000 for renovations and \$30,000 for an architect. At this point he would like to advise the Board of Supervisors that they are working in this direction and feels it would be to their benefit to get an architect to "coach" them. He would like to check with a number of architects to get proposals.

Mr. Hackman stated he has walked through the Police Department with Acting Chief Bainbridge and there is a large, unimproved area that is being used for storage. He feels they should start using this area. He feels they need someone who has designed Police Departments to help them. Acting Chief Bainbridge stated this area has no heating or air conditioning and they need someone to "coach" them through this project.

Mr. Fazzalore asked if they will be doing away with the holding cells, and Acting Chief Bainbridge stated they will not since they plan to begin using them.

Mr. Hackman asked that Mr. Fedorchak get back to the Board at the next meeting with the name of some architects.

Mr. Hackman stated they may need to use Meeting Room C for storage.

#### DATE OF ROAD TOUR

After discussion, Mr. Fedorchak suggested Friday, May 5 at 8:00 a.m. as the date for the Road Tour.

## APPROVE AWARD OF CONTRACT TO INSTALL ELECTRIC CONNECTIONS AND INDICATOR LIGHTS

Acting Chief Bainbridge stated this is the continuation of the project to get emergency power to the traffic lights. Three contractors were contacted with two responding. The low bidder was Marco Electric. He noted the Township already has the generators.

Mr. Fazzalore moved and Mrs. Godshalk seconded to award the contract to Marco Electric to install electrical connections and indicator lights to twenty-four traffic lights at a cost of \$6.816.

Mr. Hackman stated they indicated they wanted to put in manual switches as opposed to automatic. Acting Chief Bainbridge stated the Township wants them to install automatic switches, and Marco has agreed to do so.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### DISCUSSION OF ZONING HEARING BOARD APPEALS

The Realen Homes request to eliminate a concrete-lined cattle watering trough on the property located at 1040 Stony Hill Road was noted. Mr. Garton stated this is on the Loberg Tract. He stated since this has contained water for some time it is classified as Waters of the Commonwealth. If they are able to remove this trough, they will be able to save a hedgerow that the neighbors would like to see saved. Mr. Edward Murphy was present with Mr. DeLuca who is the new owner of Realen Homes. It was noted the matter is scheduled to go before the Zoning Hearing Board tomorrow night. The Board decided to take no action on this matter.

There was discussion on ADA Properties, L.P. request for a Special Exception to permit a place of worship at 1237 Edgewood Road. Mr. Garton noted the letter he sent to the Board regarding this matter listing the number of variances which are also being sought in addition to the Special Exception. He stated the applicant has requested a continuance of the Hearing, and the Township is concerned that they cannot take enforcement action on the current violation while this matter is pending before the Zoning Hearing Board. They have asked for a continuance until June. Mr. Fazzalore moved, Mr. Fegley seconded and it was unanimously carried to have the Solicitor attend the Hearing in opposition and oppose the continuance.

#### SUPERVISORS' REPORTS

Mr. Hackman stated Ms. Klayman, who runs the Snack Bar at the Pool, has asked permission to install security cameras in the Snack Bar at her cost. The Board had no opposition to this. Mr. Hackman asked for an update on the installation of the gas line at the Pool, and Mr. Gouza stated they met with PECO who indicated they need a PennDOT permit to cross Edgewood Road. This was picked up Friday, and they are walking this through the system. PECO intends to start their portion of the project by May 1 and be on-line when needed.

Mrs. Godshalk asked about the Peake Farm property where there were a number of problems. She noted particularly the trees which are below the required height and the woods which need to be cleaned up. Mr. Gouza stated they have made an in-depth report on the work that needs to be done, and this was forwarded to the Quaker Group. He stated 90% of what was planted was not in accordance with requirements.

Mrs. Godshalk asked about traffic counts on Lindenhurst Road, and Mr. Gouza stated counters are scheduled to be installed on April 26. They will take counts for one week and then proceed to PennDOT to try to justify installation of lights. They wanted to take the counts prior to the end of school and the closing of certain roads. Mrs. Godshalk asked that they look at this area on the Road Tour.

#### OTHER BUSINESS

Ms. Herman asked the plans for North Park. Mr. Fazzalore stated those plans are currently on hold. Mr. Fegley stated they do have a recommendation from the Park & Recreation Board, and he feels they should bring this back to the Board of Supervisors for consideration. Mr. Fegley stated he feels they need to approve a Master Plan so the residents in the area are aware of what is proposed for the Park. He stated the Board can then begin budgeting money each year for the development of the Park. Mr. Hackman stated he feels they should consider putting a fence along the property line along the west side of the Vargo property where homes are going to be built.

#### **APPOINTMENTS**

Mr. Allan moved, Mrs. Godshalk seconded and it was unanimously carried to re-appoint Ron Smith to the Park & Recreation Board.

Mr. Hackman adjourned the meeting to Executive Session at 9:15 p.m. noting that no official business will be conducted following the Executive Session.

Respectfully Submitted,

Scott Fegley,

		in the second se



## Township of Lower Makefield

**BOARD OF SUPERVISORS** 

Wesley W. Hackman, Chairman Frank J. Fazzalore, Jr., Vice-Chairman Scott I. Fegley, Secretary/Treasurer Frederick M. Allan, Supervisor Grace M. Godshalk, Supervisor

# APRIL, 2000 WARRANT LISTS AND MARCH 2000 PAYROLL COSTS FOR APPROVAL @ APRIL 17, 2000 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING

	THE RESERVE THE PERSON NAMED IN COLUMN TWO IS NOT THE PERSON NAMED IN COLUMN TWO IS NAMED	
04/03/00 Warrant List	\$ 137,040.13	
04/00 Prepaid Expenditures	52,290.30	
04/17/00 Warrant List	514,557.60	
Total Warrants & Prepaids	2	703,888.03
PAYROLL COSTS:	ą,	
March, 2000 Payroll	387,106.14	
03/00 Payroll Taxes, etc.	29,613.62	
Total Payroll Costs		416,719.76
TOTAL TO BE APPROVED		\$1,120,607.79